
BOARD OF REGISTRATION AND ELECTIONS 
APPROVED MINUTES 

 
  

SPECIAL MEETING – NOVEMBER 24, 2025 
 
 

The Fulton County Board of Registration and Elections met in Special Session on Monday, 
November 24, 2025, at 3:00 p.m. 
 

The meeting was recorded and is available for your review on 
FGTV YouTube Channel 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCYH7E0jH6HxE-3KTRluH8SQ 
 
 
Board Members Present Ms. Sherri Allen, Chairperson 
                                             Mrs. Teresa Crawford 
                                              Mr. Douglass Selby 
                                                 Ms. Julie Adams 
                                     
                                            
 
 
Staff Attending: Mrs. Nadine E. Williams, Director; Mr. John Ross, Information Systems 
Manager; Mrs. Marcia Ridley, Election Chief; Mrs. Kathryn Glenn, Registration Chief; Ms. Amber 
Culver, Administrative Coordinator  
 
External Affairs (EA) and Fulton Government TV (FGTV): Ms. Regina Waller, Division 
Manager; Mr. James Reese (FGTV), Mr. Tyree Spencer (FGTV), Mr. Kendrick Kirkpatrick (FGTV), 
Mrs. Nerieda Andrews (FGTV)  
 
Legal: none 
 
 
ACRONYMS:  
  
BRE- Board of Registration and Elections    BMDs- Ballot Marking Devices  
DRE- Department of Registration and Elections    SOS- Secretary of State’s  
EHOC- Elections Hub and Operations Center    SEB- State Election Board  
BOC- Board of Commissioners    DDS- Department of Driver Services  
ABM- Absentee by Mail    CERA- Certified Elections Registration Administrator  
L&A- Logic and Accuracy Testing                GARViS- Georgia Registered Voter Information System  
VEO- Voter Education and Outreach                       GAVREO- Georgia Voter Registration and Elected Officials 
REIF- Reporting Elections Systems Issue Form                      AV- Advance Voting 
       
 
 

#1– APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 
Chair Allen entertained a motion to approve the agenda. The motion was made by Mrs. 
Crawford, seconded by Ms. Adams, and carried by a unanimous vote of 4-0. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCYH7E0jH6HxE-3KTRluH8SQ


Approved Minutes 
November 24, 2025- Special Meeting 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Robust Discussion 
Timestamp: 7:01- 21:00 
Link: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=RQmDjvruCOg 
 
 
#2-REVIEW OFFICIAL AND COMPLETE ELECTION MATERIAL: 

 Update of the Special Election, November 18th  
 State Senate District 35 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Ms. Adams asked a couple follow-up questions on a discussion from the pre-certification 
meeting held on Friday, November 21st regarding the Wolf Creek scanner (ICP) on the 
last day of Advance Voting 
 
Director Williams reiterated that the scanner onsite was malfunctioning. 
 
Chief Ross informed the BRE that the scanner stop accepting ballots. 
 
Ms. Adams asked could this issue have derived from Logic and Accuracy (L&A) Testing. 
 
Director Williams explained that there are procedures that the DRE follow when 
equipment stops working for any reason, if the technician onsite is unable to resolve. 
 
Ms. Adams mentioned her notes from Dominion’s manual and reiterated her concerns of 
the closing tapes of CT Martin Recreation Center.  She requested to see additional 
documents that contain a back-up file. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=RQmDjvruCOg


Approved Minutes 
November 24, 2025- Special Meeting 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

Director Williams responded that the Information Systems Manager will contact the 
vendor and update the BRE of his findings. 
 
Ms. Adams referenced her Election Summary Report (ESR), ePulse, and Voter 
Participation Report all have different data, does not match. 
 
Chief Glenn explained the procedure for missing data in the Poll Pad: 
 The poll manager contacts Registration Division 
 Personnel verify the voter’s information 
 Verified voters are logged and the manager is given a ballot activation code 
 Voter votes and that record is later updated 

 
Any discrepancies identified will be reviewed and resolved prior to the required deadlines, to include the 
reconciliation deadline (30 days after county certification) and credit for voting deadline (60 days after 
Election Day).  SEB Rule 183-1-12-.12(e) O.C.G.A § 21-2-215(i) 
 
Chair Allen clarified that it’s off by 1 vote. 
 
Director Williams explained that the template for that Ballot Canvas Summary 
recommended by a former board member was the original template.  The DRE has not 
altered the document.  
 
Director Williams stated those discrepancies do not change the Election result totals. 
 
Ms. Adams asked was there a numbered list for ballot activation code. 
 
Director Williams explained that internally the DRE keeps a record but that is currently 
not required by SOS.  
 
Mrs. Crawford inquired about the applications for elderly/ disable during General 
Municipal Election.  She asked can the application be changed to inform the voter. 
 
Director Williams responded that she would follow up with the SOS Election Director. 
 
Chair Allen asked the members if they needed more time or if they were ready to certify. 
 
Ms. Adams responded once her questions have been answered: 
 System Log Files for Wolf Creek 
 Clarity of Undervotes totals 

 
Timestamped: 21:40- 35:00 
Paused-No Audio during the review 
 
Timestamped: 35:00-  
Audio during the review 
 
The Board received updates from Director to provide clarity on undervotes. 
 
 



Approved Minutes 
November 24, 2025- Special Meeting 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

Director Williams provided clarity on the under votes totals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Adams added that her total was different based on Director Williams’ explanation. 
 
Director Williams responded that the Ballot Canvas Summary is not an official 
document, it was an informational form for the public at the request of the board. 
 
Ms. Adams stated that she wants to request an Open Records Request during the 
meeting for the KnowInk’s Voter List. 
 
Director Williams outlined to the BRE that information is already provided on laptops 
that each member has access to currently: 
 
Certification Fulton County Board of Elections Meetings: 
 
 Election Night Summary Report 

o additionally emailed to BRE Members prior to meeting 
• Voter Check-Ins Report 

o ePulse Advance Voting and Election Day Voter Poll Pad Check-In Reports 
• Numbered List of Voters 

o GARViS Numbered List of Voters- Voter Participation Report for 
Absentee, Advance in Person, and Election Day on a laptop in Excel 
format, sortable by voter registration number, method of voting, and 
precinct. 

• Scanner Results Tapes 
o Advance Voting and Election Day 

• Statement of Votes Cast by Precinct 
o additionally emailed to BRE Members prior to meeting 

 
Director Williams asked if she was referring to the Elector’s list of voters. 
 
Chief Glenn explained if that is the document you are requesting, you must request from 
SOS on their website. 
 
Timestamped: 44:30- 1:23:09 
Audio during the review. 
 
The DRE provided the system log file. 
 
The Board reviews the data simultaneously with the DRE. 



Approved Minutes 
November 24, 2025- Special Meeting 

 

5 | P a g e  
 

 
Timestamped: 1:12- 1:19:20 
Audio during the review 
 
Chief Ross explained that the log displayed that the scanner defaulted date and time.  
He explained that the malfunctioning scanner will be removed from circulation until a 
resolution is achieved. 
 
Mr. Selby asked are you confident that the data is correct. 
 
Chief Ross responded yes. 
 
Director Williams explained that the only discrepancy was the date on the results tape, 
there were no other concerns. 
 All election results matched 
 Recap sheets matched 
 AV staff signed off on the tapes as matched 
 Ballot count match (ballots are physically counted during Reconciliation 
 L&A material was reviewed 

 
Director Williams reviewed and corrected the information she provided to the board; her 
original metrics were correct. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 
Total Cast          6390 

 
Chair Allen asked Director Williams are the attached Election Summary Results a true 
and correct count of the votes cast in Fulton County for the candidates for State Senate 
District 35 Special Election. 
 
Director Williams responded yes Madam Chair. 
 
Chair Allen entertained a motion to approve the Election Results of the State Senate 
District 35 Special Election for November 18, 2025.  The motion was made by Mrs. 
Crawford, seconded by Ms. Adams, and carried by a unanimous vote of 4-0. 
 
Ms. Adams informed the BRE of the election material that Cobb County provides to the 
public and the board. 
 



Approved Minutes 
November 24, 2025- Special Meeting 

 

6 | P a g e  
 

Director Williams explained that this board receives over and above what’s required by 
law to certify any election.  She’s not aware of what Cobb County does. 
 
Ms. Adams re-submitted her request to get a legal opinion regarding members having 
restricted access. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
The Board did not convene into Executive Session. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, Chair Allen entertained a motion to adjourn. Mr. Selby 
moved to adjourn the meeting, Ms. Adams seconded the motion.  There being no further 
business on the agenda, the Board adjourned the meeting at 4:28 p.m.  
 
The meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
      Prepared by: 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Mariska Bodison, Board Secretary 


